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IN THE MATTER OF
HALLCRAFT JEWELERS, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
) THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND TRUTH IN LENDING
T E ACTS
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This consent order, among other things, requires a Levittown, Pa. retailer of
watches and jewelry, and its subsidiaries to cease misrepresenting an
affiliation with the Government or the Armed Forces; the quality and prices of
their merchandise; and their business methods and services. Respondents are
required to advise customers of cancellation and refund rights; furnish
Spanish translations of pertinent documents, where applicable; and, in
connection with consumer credit, cease failing to disclose such information as
is required by Regulation Z of the Truth in Lending Act. Further, respondents,
in the collection of debts, are prohibited from threatening fictitious discipli-
nary action, or otherwise engagmg in the acts and practices prescribed in the
order.

Appearances

For the Commission: Michael Dershowitz.
For the respondents: Richard A. Bookspany, Stark & Stark,
Trenton, N.J.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, and of the Truth in Lending Act and the implementing
regulation promulgated thereunder, and by virtue of the authority
vested in it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission, having
reason to believe that Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc., a corporation,
Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. of New Jersey, a corporation, Crest Clothiers, .
Inc., a corporation, also trading and doing business as Crest Collec-

tion Agency, and Donald J. Bound, individually an?i as an officet of

said corporations, hereinafter sometimes referred to as respondents,
have violated the provisions of said Acts, and the implementing
regulation promulgated under the Truth in Lending Act, and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. isa corporatlon
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. It dominates and
controls the acts and practices of its wholly-owned subsidiaries
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Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. of New Jersey and Crest Clothiers, Inc.,
which are corporations organized and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of New Jersey. Respondent Crest
Clothiers, Inc., also trades and does business as Crest Collection
_Agency: All of the above-named corporate respondents have their
prlnClpaI offices and places of business at 7022 Bristol Pike, Levit-
town, Pennsylvania.

 Respondent Donald J. Bound is an officer of each of the corporate
respondents named herein. He formulates, directs and controls the
acts and practices of said corporate respondents including the acts
and practices hereinafter set forth. His address is the same as that of
said corporations.

The aforementioned respondents (hereinafter sometlmes collec-
tively referred to as Hallcraft Jewelers) cooperate and act together in
carrying out the acts and practices hereinafter set forth.

PARr. 2. Respondents are now, and for some time last past have been
engaged in the manufacture of jewelry and the advertising, offering
for sale, sale and distribution of jewelry and watches, as well as the
collection of accounts resulting from the retail sale of such merchan-
dise from various retail outlets located throughout the United States
and adjacent to military bases.

" Par. 3. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business,
respondents are now, and for some time last past have been, engaged
in shipping merchandise for retail sale from their principal place of
business in"the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to various retail
outlets located throughout the United States. Respondents also ship
merchandise directly from their principal place of business to
persons located throughout the United States and the District of
Columbia, through the facilities of the United States Postal Service.

Respondents also use the same facilities to mail collection forms and—-= =+ ~ -

letters from their principal place of business to alleged debtors
located throughout the United States and the District of Columbia
and in various foreign countries.

Accordingly, respondents have maintained, and now maintain, a
substantial course and conduct of business in or affecting commerce,
as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended.

COUNT 1

Alleging violations of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act, the allegations of Paragraphs One, Two and Three hereof are
incorporated by reference in COUNT I as if fully set forth verbatim.

Par. 4. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and
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for the purpose of inducing the purchase of their products and

services, respondents and their employees, salesmen, representa-

tives, licensees, franchisees or contractors have represented and now
“represent, directly or by implication in oral solicitations to prospec-
~five customers that: L ¢

1. Hallcraft Jewelers is affiliated w1th or has 'some official
relationship with the United States Government or the United States
Armed Forces.

In order to enhance the above representation, respondents have
made or make the following typical and illustrative, but not all-
inclusive additional oral representations:

(a) Hallcraft Jewelers does not have to charge state sales tax with
the sale of its merchandise.

(b) Hallcraft Jewelers can offer low prices for its merchandise
because it is affiliated with Military Post Exchanges.

(c) Hallcraft Jewelers is the excluswe jewelry dealer for military
personnel.

(d) Hallcraft Jewelers merchandise is either inspected or approved
by military personnel.

(e) Hallcraft Jewelers registers the diamonds it offers for sale with
the United States Government. -

2. Upon payment and fulfillment of a debt to Hallcraft Jewelers
purchasers are promised or may receive an “AAA credit rating,” as
evidenced by a printed card to that effect, which enables purchasers
to then purchase merchandise on credit from merchants other than
Hallcraft Jewelers. '

PAR. 5. In truth and in fact:

1. Hallcraft Jewelers is not affiliated with, nor has any official
relationship with the United States Government or the United States
Armed Forces.

(a) Hallcraft Jewelers may not have to charge Statesales tax with- -

the purchase of its merchandise, not because it is affiliated with or
has some official relationship with the United States Government or
the United States Armed Forces, but rather because Hallcraft
Jewelers may not have a store in the state in which its merchandise is
being mailed.

(b) Hallcraft Jewelers is not affiliated with Military Post Exchang-
es and cannot for that reason offer lower prices for its merchandise.
In fact, Hallcraft Jewelers charges higher prices for its merchanidse
than Military Post Exchanges do for the same or similar merchan-
idse.

(c) Hallcraft Jewelers is not the exclusive jewelry dealer for
military personnel.
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(d) Hallcraft Jewelers merchandise is neither officially inspected
nor approved by military personnel.

(e) Hallcraft Jewelers does not register the diamonds it offers for

-~ sale with the United StatesGovernment.

2. The “AAA credit rating” that purchasers of Hallcraft Jewelers
merchanidse are promised or may receive, will rarely, if ever, in and
of itself enable purchasers to buy merchandise on credit from
merchants other than Hallcraft Jewelers. In fact, the promise or
granting of such ratings only constitutes a further attempt by
respondents to falsely induce the purchase of their merchandise.

Therefore, the statements and representations as set forth in
Paragraph Four hereof were and are false, misleading and.deceptive.

Par. 6. In the further course and conduct of their aforesaid
business, and for the purpose of inducing the purchase of their
products and services, respondents have made and are now making,
numerous statements and representations in various printed materi-
als which respondents present to prospective or actual purchasers.

Typical and illustrative of said statements and representations, but
not all-inclusive thereof, are the following:

We use only the finest diamonds available.

To insure quality and avoid substitution of inferior gems, we certify that every
diamond in your merchandise has been carefully examined under a 30-POWER
DIAMOND LOUPE before mounting to guarantee brilliance, color, cut and
clarity.

* . * * * * * .

Hallcraft operates under a “military code of business ethics,”* * *[which

provides that] ) e e LT [

RIS

We will make no misrepresentations to customers regarding our business or
services.

We will conceal no material fact, either directly or indirectly, which could cause a
customer to be misled as to quality of merchandise, nature of service or terms of
sale.

We will avoid any practice which might place this business under investigation
by the Armed Forces Disciplinary Control Board, realizing that this Board hasthe
duty to place any establishment which it finds engaged in unfair, immoral or
illegal practices, off limits to military personnel.

* * * * * * *

No unjustified, insulting or ridiculous letters of indebtedness are ever sent to

" customers or their commanding officers. Many a promising military career has
been ruined by unscrupulous merchants, who have written letters to command-
ing officers on unjustified debts.
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Par. 7. By and through the use of the above-quoted statements and
representations, and others of similar import and meaning, but not
expressly set out herein, respondents have represented, and are now
representing, directly or by implication, that: -

1. Respondents sell only the finest diamonds available.

2. Respondents examine every diamond they sell under a 30-
power diamond loupe before mounting which enables them to
guarantee the brilliance, color, cut and clarity of diamonds sold.

3. Because respondents operate under a military code of business
ethics, they are affiliated with or have some official relationship with
the United States Armed Forces.

4. Because respondents operate under a military code of business
ethics, it is unlikely that respondents will make any misrepresenta-
tions to customers regarding their business or services.

5. Because respondents operate under a military code of business
ethics, it is unlikely that respondents will conceal material facts,
~ either directly or indirectly, which could cause a customer to be
misled as to quality of merchandise, nature of service or terms of sale.

‘6. Because respondents operate under a military code of business |
ethics, it is unlikely that respondents will engage in any practice
which might place them under investigation by the Armed Forces
Displinary Control Board, realizing that this Board has the duty to
place any establishment which it finds engaged in unfair, immoral or
illegal practices; off limits to military personnel.

7. Because of the serious consequences involved with sending
letters of indebtedness to customers and their commanding officers,
respondents will refrain from doing so, at least in the ordinary course
and conduct of their business. P .

PAR. 8. In truth and in fact:. R

1. Respondents do not sell the finest diamonds available; in many
instances, they sell a much lower quality grade of diamonds.

2. Examination of diamonds before mounting by respondents,
under a 30-power diamond loupe, will not guarantee the brilliance,
color, cut or clarity of diamonds. In fact, 30-power loupes are not
ordinarily used in the industry for diamond examination.

3. Respondents are not affiliated with nor have any official
relationship with the United States Armed Forces, and their use of
the word “military” in conjunction with a code of business ethicsis a
misrepresentation of respondents’ status or affiliations.

4. In disregard of their alleged adherence to a military code of
business ethics, respondents have and are making numerous misre-
presentations to customers regarding their business or services.

5. In disregard of their alleged adherence to a military code of
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ethics, respondents have and are concealing material facts, either
directly or indirectly, which cause customers to be misled as to
°~ ——-= quality of merchandise, nature of service or terms of sale.

6. In disregard of their alleged adherence to a mlhtary code of
business ethics, respondents have engaged and are engaged in
practices which have resulted in their being placed under investiga-
tion by the Armed Forces Disciplinary Control Board and in fact, the
Board has exercised its duty to place respondents’ place of business in
various locations off limits to military personnel after finding that
respondents engaged in unfair, immoral, or illegal practices.

7. Respondents have not refrained from sending numerous letters
of indebtedness to customers and their commanding officers and in
fact, respondents have and are sending numerous such letters to
other third parties as well, in the ordmary course and conduct of
their business.

Therefore, the statements and representations as set forth in
Paragraphs Six and Seven hereof were and are false misleading and
deceptive.

Par. 9. In the further course and conduct of their aforesaid
business, and for the purpose of inducing the purchase of their
products and services, respondents and their employees, salemen,
representatives, licensees, franchisees or contractors have engaged
and are engaged in the following unfair, false, misleading and
deceptive acts and practices:

By and through the use of the false, misleading and deceptive
statements, representations and practices set forth in Paragraphs
Four, Six and Seven, above, and through the use of high pressure

sales methods predicated upon a child’s love for his parents or some . - ..

other loved one, respondents or their representatives have been able
to induce customers into signing a contract upon initial contact
without giving the customer sufficient time to carefully consider the
purchase and consequences thereof.

PaRr. 10. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and
in furtherance of a program for inducing the payment of alleged
delinquent accounts by purchasers of jewelry and watches, pursuant
to contracts with Hallcraft Jewelers, respondents have made, and are
now making, numerous statements and representations in printed
forms and letters and other printed material which respondents mail,
or cause to be mailed, to alleged delinquent debtors.

Typical and illustrative of said statements and representations, but
not all-inclusive thereof, are the following:

1. Statements and representations on the inside of Hallcraft
Jewelers series of dunning envelopes:
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A letter to your Commanding Officer will be written if you ignore this letter.

Re LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

* * * * * * *

R ’our attorneys are now in the process of enforcmg sald Articles.

* * * * * * : A

Such proceedmgs and legal fees can be stopped only by a remittance of at least
$40. within 10 days,* * *.

Should you fail to remit or reply, your will force us to turn your account over to
THE CREST COLLECTION AGENCY without further notice to you. -

2. Statements and representations on forms and letters with the
letterhead “Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc.:”

Be advised, due to the serious delinquent condition of your account, it has now
been transferred to the legal department. -

Should you decide not to cooperate, to bring about liquidation of your account,
litigation by this department will be initiated and all legal avenues available to
us will be used.

Seymour Cohen,
Legal Department

The second copy [of a complete report of our efforts to attain liquidation of the
balance ] will be delivered to the local credit bureau’s (sic) of all concerned.

[A third letter] will be sent to the Adjutant General, Washington, D.C. If sent,
there is no doubt, disciplinary action will result. .

Be advised, litigation against the above named individual and yourself has been
initiated.

If it becomes necessary to take action to either collect the amount past due on
your account, or to repossess our merchandise through the civil courts, please be

advised that all court costs and attorney fees will be-paid by you, as stated in . o
terms of the Conditional Sales Contract, signed by you at the time of purchase .

3. Statements and representations on forms and letters with the
letterhead “Crest Collection Agency, P.O. Box 185, Burlington, New
Jersey 18016:”

Your delinquent account with the above named company has been transferred to
the Crest Collection Agency for collection purposes.

To avoid the embarrassment of having a credit investigation conducted in your
local area, plus the possibility of having a collection agent coming to your home,
we again implore you to lend us your cooperation.

* * *To protect ourselves and our affiliates we do hereby notify you that after ten
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(10) days from date hereof we disclaim all liability of the part of ourselves and our
affiliates for any loss of position, injury to prestige, credit standing, reputation or
influence, or any other damage caused you by the just and fair prosecution of this
claim to a full and complete settlement thereof.

"™ Inboldface type headings, sometimes in Latin:
PEREMPTORY NOTICE
DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

DRAFT DEPOSITION NOTA BENE

Along with a masthead insignia which depicts an eagle, a stars and
stripes shield and the scales of justice. . '

Par. 11. By and through the use of the above-quoted statements
and representations, and others of similar import and meaning but
not expressly set out herein, respondents have represented, and are
now representing, directly or by implication, that:

1. If payment is not made, respondents will notify the debtor’s
superior officers and disciplinary action will result.

2. If payment is not made, respondents will initiate legal proceed-
ings against the debtor.

3. Because payment had not been made, respondents have
initiated legal proceedings against the debtor.

4. If payment is not received within the time specified by
respondents, some immediate action will be taken by respondents to
collect a debt, such as notification of superior officers or turning over
accounts to a collection agency.

5. Respondents maintain a legal department.

6. If respondents seek to collect a debt or_repossess their—- -« =~ o -« =" -

merchandise through the civil courts, the Conditional Sales Contract
between respondents and debtor provides that the debtor pay all
court costs and attorneys fees. '

7. If payment is not made, the debtor’s account will be turned

~over to an independent collection agency retained by respondents to
collect respondents’ delinquent accounts.

8. If payment is not made, the debtor’s account will be turned
over to a local credit bureau and the local credit bureaus of his
relatives, references and recipients of the purchased merchandise.

9. If payment is not made, respondents will cause a credit
investigation to be conducted in the debtor’s local area with the
possibility that a collection agent will call at his home.

10. Respondents can validly disclaim all liability for the possible
consequences -of their actions taken against the debtor, including his
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- loss of position, injury to prestige, credit standing, reputation or
influence, or any other damages caused the debtor.

11. Respondents’ communications to debtors constitute legal
process forms.

PaRr. 12. In truth and in fact:

~-l._ Notification of the debtor’s superior officers by respondents
will rarely, if ever, result in disciplinary action taken against the
debtor.

2. Respondents rarely initiate legal proceedings against debtors.

3. Respondents do not take immediate action to collect debts if
payment is not received within the time specified; only further
.threatening forms and letters are sent to debtors.

4. Respondents.do not maintain a legal department.

5. When respondents attempt to collect a debt or repossess their
merchandise through the civil courts, the Conditional Sales Contract
between respondents and debtor does not provide that the débtor pay
all court costs and attorneys fees, but in fact, provides that the debtor
pay -attorneys fees in an amount not exceedmg 10 percent of the
balance due on a debt.

6. Debtors’ accounts are not turned over to an independent
collection agency, but are rather turned over to the Crest Collection
Agency, a component of the single business entity operated as an
integrated operation by respondent Donald J. Bound; and its
different mailing address from Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. is a further
misrepresentation of respondents’ actual business organization.

7. Debtors’ accounts are rarely, if ever, turned over to a local
credit bureau and are never turned over to the local credit bureaus of
relatives, references or recipients of the purchased merchandise.

8. Respondents rarely, if ever, cause a credit investigation to be
conducted in the debtor’s local area with a collection agent calling at
his home.

9. Respondents cannot validly disclaim a’ii\Tfabiﬁty""fbr the™ T -

possible consequences of their actions against debtors; debtors have
the right to a trial to establish any damages possibly suffered by
them. Respondents make this claim only to impliedly threaten
debtors with the very possibilities described, in order to further
harass and intimidate them.

10. Respondents’ communications to debtors do not constitute
legal process forms.

Therefore, the statements and representations as set forth in
Paragraphs Ten'and Eleven hereof were and are false, misleading
and deceptive. ‘

Par. 13. In the further course and conduct of their aforesaid
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business, and in furtherance of a program for inducing the payment -
of alleged delinquent accounts by purchasers of jewelry and watches,
pursuant to contracts with Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc., respondents have

= engaged, and are now engaging in the act and practice of communi-

cating with various third parties concerning the alleged indebted-
ness. By such communication, respondents have also demanded and
are now demanding of such third parties, either directly or by
implication, that full or partial payment be made by them to
liquidate the alleged indebtedness. Respondents have contacted, and
are now contacting, members of the United States Armed Forces,
debtors’ relatives, references and recipients of purchased merchan-
dise.

Typical and illustrative of such contact and statements and
representations found therein, but not all-inclusive thereof, are the
following:

1. On forms and letters with the letterhead “Hallcraft Jewelers,
Inc.” and “Crest Collection Agency” sent to members of the United
States Armed Forces:

In the interest of settling the delinquent account of the above named individual,
we respectfully request your assistance.

In reference to the above-named individual, we are asking that a member of your
staff counsel this man with regard to his obligation to this company.

It would be appreciated if the subject could be counseled with regard to the
advantages of voluntary repossession of purchased item(s), and obtain from him,
his statement of release.

We are familiar with Military Regulations concerning an individual’s responsi-

bility to creditors and equally familiar with the limits 5 you have as a Commandpr,; L

in such matters. Therefore, we are not asking you to act as a collection agent, but
rather, as an intermediary between Crest Collection Agency and the debtor.

2. On the inside of Hallcraft Jewelers dunning envelopes and on
forms and letters with the letterhead “Crest Collection Agency” sent
to debtors:

Copy Sent to Legal Home Address and Holder of Merchandise.

3. On the inside of Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. dunning envelopes and
on forms and letters with the letterhead “Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc.”
sent to the recipients of merchandise and a debtor’s legal home
address: -

This serious action and embarrassment can be stopped only by
the immediate receipt of $40.
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Such proceedings and legal fees can be stopped.only by a
remittance of at least $40. within 10 days* * *

T * twe have found it necessary. to.send the first letter of

indebtedness to the above-mentioned individual’s Cornmandmg
Officer. Please do not underestimate this action for it can cause
serious consequences with regards to his Military records* * *

If you wish to interdict this action in the interest of assisting the
above individual, please remit at least $40. before the 20th of this
month, along with arrangements to liquidate the remaining
balance.

The second copy [of a complete report of our efforts to attain
liquidation of the balance] will be delivered to the local credit
bureau’s (sic) of all concerned.

Be advised, litigation against the above-pamed individual and
yourself has now been initiated. You have been named as the
holder of merchandise still encumbered by this company and
subsequently will be named as the co-defendant in legal proceed-
ings now being prepared.

- PAR. 14. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents as
described in Paragraph Thirteen hereof has had, and now has, the
capacity and tendency to cause alleged delinquent debtors and
various third parties contacted by respondents to feel coerced,
pressured and embarrassed, their private affairs to be interfered with
and their integrity to be undermined. Therefore, the use by respon-
dents of such acts and practices is, and was, unfair.

PAR. 15. The use by respondents of the aforesaid false, ﬂnsleadmg e e o

and deceptive statements and representations has had, and now has,
the capacity and tendency to mislead members of the public into the
erroneous and mistaken belief that said statements and representa-
tions were, and are, true, and into the payment of alleged debts by
reason of said erroneous and mistaken belief.

- PAR. 16. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and
at all times mentioned herein, respondents have been, and now are,
in substantial competition, in commerce, with corporations, firms
and individuals engaged in the sale of products and services of the
same general kind and nature as those sold by the respondents.

PAr. 17. The aforesaid acts and practices of the respondents, as
herein alleged, were, and are, all to the prejudice and injury of the
~ public and of respondents’ competitors and constituted, and now
constitute, unfair methods of competition in or affecting commerce
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and unfair and deceptive acts and practices in or affecting commerce
in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended.

— - - . Lo . L S

COUNT 11

Alleging violations of the Truth in Lending Act and the implement-
ing regulation promulgated thereunder, and of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, the allegations of Paragraphs One, Two, and Three
hereof are incorporated by reference in COUNT II as if fully set forth
verbatim.

PAR. 18. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business,
respondents regularly extend, and for some time past have regularly
extended, consumer credit as “consumer credit” is defined in
Regulation Z, the implementing regulation of the Truth in Lending
Act, duly promulgated by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System.

Par. 19. Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondents, in the course and
conduct of their aforesaid business, and in connection with their
credit sales, as “credit sale” is defined in Regulation Z, have caused
and are causing customers to execute binding conditional sales
contracts, hereinafter referred to as the “Contract.” Respondents do
not provide.these customers with any other consumer credit cost
disclosures.

By and through the use of the Contract, respondents:

1. Fail to use the term “cash price” as defined in Section 226.2(i)
of Regulation Z, to describe the purchase price of the merchandise or
service, as required by Section 226.8(c)(1) of Regulation Z.

2. Fail to use the term “cash downpayment” to describe the .

downpayment in money made in connection with thé ¢redit sale, as

required by Section 226.8(c)(2) of Regulation Z.

3. Fail to use the term “unpaid balance of cash price” to describe
the difference between the cash price and the total downpayment, as
required by Section 226.8(c)(3) of Regulation Z

4. Fail to use the term “amount financed” to describe the amount
of credit extended, as required by Section 226.8(c)(7) of Regulation Z.

5. Fail to use the term “deferred payment price” to describe the
sum of the cash price, all charges which are included in the amount
financed but:-which are not part of the finance charge, and the
finance charge, as required by Section 226.8(c)(8)(ii) of Regulation Z.

6. Fail to use the term “total of payments” to describe the sum of
the payments scheduled to repay the indebtedness, as required by
Section 8(b)(3) of Regulation Z.

7. Falil to properly disclose the amount, or method of computing
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the amount, of a delinquency charge payable in the event of late
payments, as required by Section 226.8(b)(4) of Regulation Z.

8. Fail to make all required disclosures together on either the
note or other instrument evidencing the obligation on the same side
- of the page and above or adjacent to the place for the customer’s
s1gnatdre or on one side of a separate statement which identifies the
transaction, as required by Section 226.8(a) of Regulation Z. T

Par. 20. Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondents have caused to be
disseminated through the mail, advertisements, as “advertisement”
is defined in Section 226.2(b) of Regulation Z, to aid, promote, or
assist directly or indirectly consumer credit sales of merchandise of
various types.

By and through the use of the advertisement, respondents disclose
one or more of the credit terms listed in Section 226.10(d)(2) of
Regulation Z without also clearly and conspicuously disclosing the
additional credit terms required by and set forth in paragraphs (i)
through (v) of Section 226.10(d)(2) in terminology prescribed under
Section 226.8 of Regulation Z.

Par. 21. Subsequent to October 28, 1974, respondents have caused
to be disseminated through the mail, advertisements, as “advertise-
ment” is defined in Section 226.2(b) of Regulation Z, to aid, promote
or assist directly or indirectly consumer credit sales of merchandise
of various types. These consumer credit sales were repayable in more
than four installments without the imposition of a separately stated
finance chargé. Certain of these advertisements have failed to state
clearly and conspicuously, as required by Section 146 of the Truth in
Lending Act and Section 226.10(f) of Regulation Z, the disclosure:
““THE COST OF CREDIT IS INCLUDED IN THE PRICE QUOTED FOR THE GOODS
AND SERVICES.”

Par. 22. Pursuant to Section 103(q) of the Truth in Lending Act,
respondents’ aforesaid failures to comply with the provisions of
Regulation Z constitute violations of that A%t and-pursuant-to. ..
Section 108(c) of the Truth in Lending Act, respondents have thereby
engaged in unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act, as amended.

DEecisioN AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having heretofore issued its
complaint charging the respondents named in the caption hereto
with violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, and of the Truth in Lending Act and the implementing
regulation promulgated thereunder, and the respondents having
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been served with a copy of the complaint together with a proposed
form of order; and

The Commission having duly determined upon a joint motion of
Commission counsel and respondents’ counsel that, by the circum-
stances presented, the public interest would be served by withdrawal
of the matter from adjudication for the purpose of considering a
proposed agreement containing a consent order pursuant to Section
3.25 of the Commission’s Rules; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having executed
an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the
respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the complaint, a
statement that the signing of said agreement is for .settlement
purposes only and does not constitute an admission by respondents
that the law has been violated as alleged in the complaint, and
waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules;
and

The Commission having considered the agreement and having
accepted same, and the agreement containing a consent order having
thereupon been placed on the public record for a period of sixty (60)
days, now in further conformity with the procedures prescribed in
Section 3.25(d) of its Rules, the Commission hereby makes the
following jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with its office and principal place of .

business located at 7022 Bristol Pike, Levittown, Pennsylvania.

Clothiers, Inc., which also trades and does business as Crest Collec-
tion Agency, and wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hallcraft Jewelers,
Inc. and are corporations organized, existing and doing business
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New Jersey, with their
offices and principal places of business located at 7022 Bristol Pike,
Levittown, Pennsylvania.

Respondent Donald J. Bound is an officer of the corporate
respondents. He formulates, directs and controls the acts and
practices of the corporate respondents, and his address is the same as
that of the corporate respondents.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding
is in the public interest. '

Respondents Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. of New dJersey.and- Crest™
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1

It is ordered, That respondents Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc., a corpora-

~tion, -Halleraft Jewelers, Inc. of -New Jersey, a corporation, Crest
Clothiers, Inc., a corporation, also trading and doing business as Crest
Collection Agency, or under any other name or names, their
successors and assigns, and their officers, and Donald J. Bound,
individually and as an officer of said corporate respondents, and
respondents’ officers, agents, representatives and employees, directly
or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, in
connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale, or distribution
of jewelry and watches, or other products or services, and in

. connection with the collection of, or attempting to collect, or assisting
in the collection of, or inducing, or attempting to induce the payment
of accounts, in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, do forthwith cease
and desist from, orally or in writing, directly or by implication:

1. Representing that respondents are either affiliated with or
have any official relationship with either the United States Govern-

- ment or the United States Armed Forces.

2. Representing that respondents do not have to charge state
sales tax with the sale of their merchandise due to any affiliation
with or official relationship with either the United States Govern-
ment or the United States Armed Forces or for any other reason that
is inconsistent with official state sales tax regulations.

3. Representing that respondents can offer low prices for their
‘merchandise due to any affiliation with or official relationship with
either the United States Government or the United States Armed
Forces, including Military Post Exchanges. -

4. Representing that respondents are the exclusive™ “jewelry
dealers for military personnel, the United States Armed Forces or
any branches therein.

5. Representing that respondents’ merchandlse is either inspect-
ed or approved by military personnel.

6. Representing that respondents register the dlamonds they
offer for sale with the United States Government.

7. Representing that purchasers who receive an “AAA credit -
rating” from respondents may then be able to purchase merchandise
on credit from merchants other than respondents.

8. Representing that respondents either use or sell only the finest
diamonds available.

9. Representing that examination of diamonds before mounting
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by respondents, under a 30-power diamond loupe, or any other power
loupe will guarantee the brllhance, color, cut clarlty or any other
aspect of diamond quality. - - . -

10. Representing that through the use of the word military” in
conjunction with a code of business ethics, respondents are affiliated
with or have some official relationship with the United States Armed
Forces.

11. Representing that respondents will make no misrepresenta-
tions to customers regarding their business or services.

12. Representing that respondents will conceal no material facts,
either directly or indirectly, which could cause a customer to be
misled as to quality of merchandise, nature of service or terms of sale.

13. Representing that respondents will avoid any practice which
might place their business under investigation by the Armed Forces
Disciplinary Control Board, realizing this Board has the duty to place
any establishment which it finds engaged in unfair, immoral or
illegal practices, off limits to military personnel. '

14. Contracting for any sale whether in the form of trade
acceptance, conditional sales contract, promissory note, or otherwise
which shall become binding on the purchaser prior to midnight of the
third day,.excluding Sundays and legal holidays, after the date of
execution.

15. Failing to furnish the purchaser with a fully completed
receipt or copy of any contract pertaining to such sale at the time of
its execution, which is in the same language, e.g., Spanish, as that
principally used in the oral sales presentation and which shows the

date of the transaction and contains the name and address of the

seller, and in immediate proximity to the space reserved in " the
contract for the signature of the purchaser or on the front page of the
receipt if a contract is not used and in boldface type of a minimum
size of 10 points, a statement in substantially the following form:

YOU, THE BUYER, MAY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION AT ANY TIME
PRIOR TO MIDNIGHT OF THE THIRD BUSINESS DAY AFTER THE DATE
OF THIS TRANSACTION. SEE THE ATTACHED NOTICE OF CANCELLA-
TION FORM FOR AN EXPLANATION OF THIS RIGHT.

16. Failing to furnish each purchaser, at the time he signs the

sales contract or otherwise agrees to buy consumer goods or services

from the seller, a completed form in duplicate, captioned “NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION,” which shall be attached to the contract or receipt
and easily detachable, and which shall contain in 10 point boldface
type the following information and statements in the same language,
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e.g., Spanish, as that used in the contract in substantially the
f0110w1ng form: ©

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION

[enter date of transaction]

(Date)

YOU MAY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION, WITHOUT ANY PENALTY OR
OBLIGATION, WITHIN THREE BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE ABOVE DATE.

IF YOU CANCEL, ANY PROPERTY TRADED IN, ANY PAYMENTS MADE BY
YOU UNDER THE CONTRACT OR SALE AND ANY NEGOTIABLE INSTRU-
MENT EXECUTED BY YOU WILL BE RETURNED WITHIN 10 BUSINESS
DAYS FOLLOWING RECEIPT BY THE SELLER OF YOUR CANCELLATION
NOTICE, AND ANY SECURITY INTEREST ARISING OUT OF THE TRAN-
SACTION WILL BE CANCELLED.

IF YOU CANCEL, YOU MUST RETURN OR CAUSE TO BE RETURNED TO
THE SELLER, IN SUBSTANTIALLY AS GOOD CONDITION AS WHEN
RECEIVED, ANY GOODS DELIVERED TO YOU OR DELIVERED TO ONE
DESIGNATED BY YOU, UNDER THIS CONTRACT OR-SALE AT THE
SELLER’S EXPENSE AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH INSTRUCTIONS OF THE
SELLER REGARDING THE RETURN SHIPMENT OF THE GOODS.

IF YOU FAIL TO RETURN OR CAUSE TO BE RETURNED THE GOODS
DELIVERED TO YOU OR THE ONE DESIGNATED BY YOU WITHIN 20
DAYS OF THE DATE OF YOUR NOTICE OF CANCELLATION, THEN YOU
REMAIN  LIABLE FOR PERFORMANCE OF ALL OBLIGATIONS UNDER
THE CONTRACT.

TO CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION, MAIL OR DELIVER A SIGNED AND

DATED COPY OF THIS CANCELLATION NOTICE-OR ANY OTHER WRIT--..~ ~ -

TEN NOTICE, OR SEND A TELEGRAM TO [Name of Seller), AT [Address of
seller’s local place of business], NOT LATER THAN MIDNIGHT OF (Date)

ITHEREBY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION.

(Date)

(Buyer’s Signature)

17.  Failing; before furnishing copies of the “Notice of Cancella-
tion” to the purchaser, to complete both copies by entering the name
of the seller, the address of the seller’s local place of business, the
date of the transaction and the date, not earlier than the third
business day following the date of the transaction, by which the
purchaser may give notice of cancellation.

18. Including in any sales contract or receipt any confession of

R S
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judgment or any waiver of any of the rights to which the buyer is
entitled under this order 1nclud1ng specifically his right to cancel the
“sale’in accordance with the provisions of this order.’ .

19. Failing to inform each buyer orally, at the time he signs the
contract or purchases the goods or services, of his right to cancel.

20. Misrepresenting, directly or indirectly, orally or in writing,
the buyer’s right to cancel. '

21. Failing or refusing to honor any valid notice of cancellation by
a buyer and within 10 business days after the receipt of such notice,
to (i) refund all payments made under the contract or sale; (ii) return
any goods or property traded in, in substantially as good condition as
when received by the seller; (iii) cancel and return d@ny negotiable
instrument executed by the buyer in connection with the contract or
sale and take any action necessary or appropriate to terminate
promptly any security interest in the transaction.

22. Negotiating, transferring, selling, or assigning any note or
other evidence of indebtedness to a finance company or other third-
party prior to midnight of the fifth business day following the day the
contract was signed or the goods or services were purchased.

23. Failing, within 10 business days of receipt of the buyer’s notice
of cancellation, to notify him whether the seller intends to repossess
and if so, the manner in which this may be accomplished at the
seller’s expense, or whether the seller intends to abandon any
shipped or delivered goods.

24. Representing that disciplinary action will be taken against
debtors upon notification of their superior officers.

25. Representing that legal proceedings will or have been 1n1f§1at-, _

ed against debtors unless and until such representa’t:iim istrue.

26. Representing that an account will be or has been referred to
an attorney for initiation of legal proceedings or that an attorney will
be or is actively involved in collecting or reviewing an account,
unless, and until such representation is true.

27. Representing that any immediate action will be taken to
collect a debt, such as notification of superior officers or turning over
accounts to a collection agency, unless, and until such representation
is true; or misrepresenting, in any manner, the imminency of any
action that respondents may or will take.

28. Representing that respondents maintain a legal department
or employ attorneys as part of their debt collection business.

29. Representing that respondents will require debtors to pay all
attorneys fees or any other amount of attorneys fees generated,
which is in excess of 15 percent of the balance due on a debt.

30. Representing that collection notices sent to debtors by
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respondents are sent by a collection agency independent of respon-
dents; or misrepresenting, in any manner, respondents’ status,
activities, or actions.

31. Representing that respondents will notify the local credit
_bureaus of any persons other than the debtor’s own local credit
bureau, andl in that instance, enly when respondents ‘actually take.
the represented action, at that stage of the collection process.

- 82. Representing that a credit investigation will be conducted in
the debtor’s local area or that a collection agent will call at his home,
unless respondents actually cause the action to be taken, at that
stage of the collection process.

33. Representing that respondents can validly disclaim liability
for any action that they may take in the collection of a debt; or
making any other such statements in dunning communications
which are unfair because they appear legally concluswe or mislead-
ing.

34. Representing through depictions or manifestations of form,
that any of respondents’ dunning communications constitute legal
process forms; or misrepresenting, in any manner, the source,
authorization, or approval of any document.

It is further ordered, That respondents cease and desist from using
the words “collection agency” or any other words of similar import or
meaning in any corporate, firm, partnership or other business or
trade name or title which indicates or suggests that respondents
individually or collectively, are engaged in the business of collecting
money debts for others.

It is further ordered, That respondents, in the course of collecting a
debt, cease and desist from communicating, or threatening to
communicate with the consumer’s employer or any agent of the
employer or any other person not liable for the debt other than the
spouse or the attorney of the consumer, except as permitted by order——-= .-
of a court or solely to locate a consumer whose whereabouts are
genuinely unknown to the creditor or to determine the nature and
extent of a consumer’s wages or property, provided that, in these
latter two instances, there is no specific mention of the alleged
indebtedness.

Provided, however, nothing herein shall prohibit respondents from
communicating with the recipient of purchased merchandise, but
then only for the dual purpose of (1) actually attempting, and not
merely threatening, to repossess the merchandise upon the terms
and conditions provided by contract between the debtor and respon-
dents and in the same communication, (2) offering said recipient the
option of retaining the merchandise upon the recipient’s promise to
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assume payment of the specified balance due on the debt; provided
that in these instances, respondents do not fail to also mail copies of
_any, such communication_to the named purchaser involved and
respondents do not fail to clearly and conspicuously disclose in each
such repossession communication that:

Upon repossession, this account will be marked satisfactorily settled and an
immediate credit for the money paid on the account will be forwarded to the
attention of the purchaser along with a price catalogue from which said
purchaser may be able to choose and receive other merchandise based upon
the credit he receives.

1t is further ordered, That respondents, upon actual repossession of
the purchased merchandise upon the terms and conditions provided
by contract between the debtor and respondents and this order, do
not fail to mail to said debtor, a price catalogue from which he may be
able to choose and receive other merchandise based upon the credit
he receives.

It is further ordered, That respondents cease and desist from failing
to furnish the purchaser with a fully completed receipt or copy of any
contract pertaining to such sale at the time of its execution, which is
in the same language, e.g, Spanish, as that principally used in the
oral sales presentation and which contains a clearly and conspicuous- -
ly disclosed statement in substantially the following form:

In the course of collecting a debt, Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. will not communicate
or threaten to communicate with a consumer’s employer or any agent of the
employer or any other person not liable for the debt other than a consumer’s
spouse or attorney, except as permitted by order of a court, or solely to locate a

consumer whose whereabouts are genuinely lmkr&.wn to !;he creditor or to- .. .

determine the nature and extent of a consumer’s wages or prbpeﬂ:y, provided
that, in these latter two instances, there is no specific mention of the alleged
indebtedness. Hallcraft Jewelers may however, communicate with the recipient
of any purchased merchandise, but only for the purpose of repossession of their
merchandise upon a consumer’s default or offering the recipient, in the
alternative, the option of retention of the merchandise and assumption of the
payments due on the balance of the debt.

Provided, however, that nothing contained in Part I of this order
shall relieve respondents of any additional obligations respecting
contracts required by federal law or the law of the state in which the
contract is made. When such obligations are inconsistent, respon-
dents can apply to the Commission for relief from this provision with
respect to contracts executed in the state in which such different
obligations are required. The Commission, upon showing, shall make
such modifications as may be warranted in the premises.
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It is. further ordered, That respondents Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc.,
Hallcraft Jewelers, Inc. of "New Jersey, Crest Clothiers, Inc.;also
trading and doing business as Crest Collection Agency, or under any
other name or names, corporations, their successors and assigns, and
their officers, and Donald J. Bound, individually and as an officer of
said corporations, and respondents’ officers, agents, representatives
and employees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
division or other device, in connection with any extension of
consumer credit, or any advertisement to aid, promote, or assist,
directly or indirectly any extension of consumer credit, as “consumer
credit” and “advertisement” are defined in Regulation Z (12 C.F.R.
Section 226) of the Truth in Lending Act, as amended, (Pub. L. 90-321,
15U.S.C. 1601, et seq.), do forthwith cease and desist from:

1. Failing to use the term ‘“cash price” as defined in Section
226.2(i) of Regulation Z, to describe the purchase price of the
merchandise or service, as required by Section 226.8(c)(1) of Regula-
tion Z.

2. Failing to use the term “cash downpayment” to describe the
downpayment in money made in connection with the credit sale, as
required by Section 226.8(c)(2) of Regulation Z.

3. Failing to use the term “unpaid balance of cash price” to
describe the difference between the cash price and the total downpay-
ment, as required by Section 226.8(c)(3) of Regulation Z.

4. Failing to use the term “amount financed” to describe the
amount of credit extended, as required by Sectlon 226.8(c)(7) of

Regulation Z. T e R

5. Failing to use the term “deferred payment prlce” to descrlbe
the sum of the cash price, all charges which are included in the
amount financed but which are not part of the finance charge, and
the finance charge, as required by Section 226.8(c)(8)(ii) of Regulation
Z.

6. Failing to use the term “total of payments” to describe the sum
of the payments scheduled to repay the indebtedness, as required by
Section 226.8(b)(3) of Regulation Z.

7. TFailing to properly disclose the amount, or method of comput-
ing the amount, of a delinquency charge payable in the event of late
payments, as required by Section 226.8(b)(4) of Regulation Z.

8. Failing to make all required disclosures together on either the
note or other instrument evidencing the obligation on the same side
of the page and above or adjacent to the place for the customer’s
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signature, or on one side of a separate statement which identifies the
transaction, as required by Section 226.8(a) of Regulation Z.

_9. Failing, in any advertisement- for an extension of consumer
credit which is repayable in more than four installments without the
imposition of a separately stated finance charge, to disclose clearly
and conspicuously, “THE COST OF CREDIT IS INCLUDED IN THE PRICE
QUOTED FOR THE GOODS AND SERVICES,” as required by Section 146 of
the Truth in Lending Act and Section 226.10(f) of Regulation Z. Such
disclosure shall appear:

(a) immediately adjacent to the price, whenever the price is quoted,
either as a monthly payment or a total payment amount; and

(b) immediately above the space provided for the customer’s
signature on the merchandise order form. '

10. Representing in. any such advertisement, directly or by
implication, that no downpayment is required, the amount of any
installment payment, either in dollars or as a percentage, the dollar
amount of any finance charge, the number of installments or the
period of repayment, or that there is no charge for credit, unless all of
the following items are clearly and conspicuously stated, in terminol-
ogy prescribed under Section 226.8 of Regulation Z, as required by
Section 226.10(d)(2) of Regulatlon Z:

(i) the cash price;

(ii) the amount of the downpayrnent required or that no downpay-
ment is required, as applicable;

(iii) the number, amount, and due dates or period of payments
scheduled to repay the indebtedness if the credit is extended;

(iv) the amount of the finance charge expressed as an annual
percentage rate; and Fomser e emen e

(v) the deferred payment price.

11. Failing, in any consumer credit transaction or advertising, to
make all disclosures determined in accordance with Sections 226.4 and
226.5 of Regulation Z at the time and in the manner, form and
amount required by Sections 226 6, 226.7, 226.8 and 226.10 of
Regulation Z.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall forthwith deliver a
copy of this order to cease and desist to all present and future
personnel of respondents engaged in the offering for sale or sale of
respondents’ products or services or in the consummation of any
extension of consumer credit or in any aspect of preparation,
creation, or placing of advertising, or in the collection of accounts,
and that respondents secure a signed statement acknowledging the
receipt of the order from each such person.

1t is further ordered, That respondents shall, within thirty (30) days
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after service of this order upon respondents, distribute a copy thereof
by registered or certified mail to each military base commander
~-within & twenty-five (25) mile radius of. each of respondents’ retail
stores.

It is further ordered, That respondents notify the Commission at
least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate
respondents such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change in the corporations which may
affect compliance obligations arising out of the order.

It is further ordered, That the individual respondent named herein
promptly notify the Commission of the discontinuance of his present
business or employment and of his affiliation with a new business or
employment. In addition, for a period of five years from the effective
date of this order, the individual respondent shall promptly notify
the Commission of each affiliation with a new business or employ-
" ment whose activities include the manufacture, advertising, offering
for sale, sale and distribution of jewelry and watches or the extension
of consumer credit or the collection of accounts resulting from the
retail sale of products or services, or of his affiliation with a new
business or employment in which his own duties and responsibilities
involve the manufacture, advertising, offering for sale, sale and
distribution of jewelry and watches or the extension of consumer
credit or the collection of accounts resulting from the retail sale of
products or services. Such notice shall include 